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Finance Directbr 
(314) 296-6533 
(Fax) 282-2399 

January 6, 1998 

<lrit~ .of !rn.olh ,101 JEFFCO BOULEVARD. ARNOLD. M1ssouR163010-2746 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council and 
The Citizens of Arnold, Missouri 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Arnold, Missouri (the City) for the fiscal year 
ended August 31, 1997, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the com­
pleteness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner de­
signed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account 
groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City' s 
financial activities have been included. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical 
and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's organizational chart and 
a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements, the indi­
vidual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditors' report on the 
financial statements and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic in­
formation, generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

The City is required to undergo a single audit in conformance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act 
and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. Information related to this single audit, in­
cluding the schedule of federal awards and auditor's reports on the internal control structure and compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations, are included in the single audit section of this report. 

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City. The City provides a full range of services 
including police protection; health and sanitation services; construction and maintenance of streets and 
infrastructure; parks and recreation services; city planning and building inspection; and administration. In 
addition to general government activities, the City exercises oversight of the Sewer System and the Police 
Pension Plan; therefore, these activities are included in the reporting entity. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The City is centrally located on the eastern border of the State of Missouri, south of the Meramec River at 
its confluence with the Mississippi River. The central business district of the City of St. Louis is about 17 
miles to the north. Interstate Highway 55, U.S. Highway 61-67, State Highways 141 and 231 provide 
access to St. Louis City and St. Louis County. 



The economic condition and outlook of the City have been stable in recent years. Several large retailers and 
food stores form a retail nucleus that buffer the local economy due to the necessity of the goods sold. The 
City' s housing stock, geographic location and variety of services have kept real estate marketable. Com­
mercial vacancies remain modest while the potential for further retail and industrial development appears 
favorable within the next five years. 

The citizens of the City secure employment with business and industry throughout the St. Louis metropoli­
tan area. Employment levels in the metropolitan St. Louis area have been and are expected to remain rela­
tively stable due to the variety of business and industry. 

The City's tax structure relies heavily on sales taxes and utility taxes. Sales tax receipts are expected to 
maintain steady growth at a pace slightly greater than the rate of inflation. Utility tax receipts are likely to 
increase at a modest rate. Significant reductions are not expected from either source in the upcoming five 
years. The City has demonstrated its ability to compress government expenditure in the past to accommo­
date a tight economy or temporary downturns in revenue. It is anticipated this trait will continue. 

MAJOR GOALS 

The City Council and administrative staff regularly develop and update improvement plans designed to 
improve the quality of community life while maintaining the financial stability of the City. The growth and 
direction of the City during the past fiscal year has been greatly affected by these improvement plans. 

Goal - Extend Sanitary Sewer Facilities 

The City' s sanitary sewer subdistrict program has been effective in replacing septic systems with sewer lines. 
During the year, three sanitary sewer subdistrict projects were completed, thereby replacing 74 septic sys­
tems. Several other sanitary sewer subdistricts were in various stages of completion. The elimination of 
septic systems and the related health hazard has been and remains a primary concern for the City. 

Financing for the sewer subdistricts was provided by sewer revenue bonds issued in connection with a pro­
gram called Missouri State Revolving Fund (SRF). 

The SRF program purchased the City's revenue bonds. The interest costs for this bond issue are subsidized 
by the earnings of a reserve fund established with contributions from the Missouri Department of Natural 
Resources and the U.S . Environmental Protection Agency. The net rate on the bonds for the City is less 
than 4%. These projects eliminate the health hazards accruing from the discharge of inadequately treated 
sewage. Each project reaching completion contributes to a safer environment for City residents. 

Goal - Road Improvements 

Increased traffic and outdated design of some existing roads have prompted long range planning of road 
improvements. Replacement of two bridges on Old Lemay Ferry Road and Starling Road were completed. 
Construction began on a new road into the Tenbrook Industrial area. The completion of these projects will 
greatly improve the safety of motorists traveling these sections of road. 
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Goal - Preserve the Quality of Residential Neighborhoods 

People are the City's greatest asset and the neighborhoods in which they reside are one of the more impor­
tant responsibilities of government. The provision of quality basic services of police, fire, road maintenance, 
parks and solid waste collection are critical for their continued desirability. The existing housing inspection 
program prescribes minimum maintenance requirements for structures and premises to assure safety and 
provide for abatement of potential hazards. This program helps assure the preservation of the City' s neigh­
borhoods. 

Goal - Cooperative Opportunities 

The Jefferson County E-911 emergency service results from the collective efforts of the City of Arnold 
Police Department along with fire and ambulance districts and other municipal police departments in Jeffer­
son County and the Jefferson County Sheriff's Department, to establish the Jefferson County 911/Central 
Dispatch District. Citizens now benefit from faster emergency service response times. In addition, the City 
continues to provide space for the Jefferson County Fox/Windsor Library in the City's municipal complex. 

Goal - Disaster Recovery 

During July and August 1993, portions of the City suffered severe flooding from the Mississippi and Mera­
mec Rivers. Protective measures initiated by the City included supplying materials for construction of sand­
bag levies, pumping of storm and sanitary sewers, as well as security for the evacuated areas. The recovery 
effort began in August 1993, with removal of sandbags and flood debris. The federal government declared 
the area eligible for disaster assistance. The City has been awarded federal grants to buyout flood damaged 
structures. Structures acquired through the buyout program have been demolished and the land will remain 
as open space. The recovery effort was completed in December 1996. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed 
to ensure the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate ac­
counting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the 
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and bene­
fits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Budgeting Controls 

The City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance 
with legal provisions embodied in the annual budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the general 
fund are included in the annual budget. 

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City 
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. 
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General Government Functions 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund revenues for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 
1997 and the amount and percentage of increases in relation to prior year revenues. 

Increase Percent 
Percent (Decrease) Of Increase 

Revenues Amount Of Total From 1996 {Decrease) 

Taxes $ 6,086,870 57.4% $ 709,374 13.2% 
Special Assessments 357,203 3.4 74,682 26.4 
Licenses and permits 297,466 2.8 13,025 4.6 
Fines and court costs 379,466 3.6 37,659 11.0 
Intergovernmental 2,340,801 22.1 1,022,692 77.6 
Charges for services 580,148 5.4 1,927 0.3 
Interest 283 ,246 2.7 80,953 40.0 
Miscellaneous 276 510 _£Q (43 ,260) (13 .5) 

Total $10 601,710 100 0% 1,897,052 21.8% 

With the City' s present tax structure, the largest share of general revenue is provided by the City' s one cent 
sales tax and a gross receipts tax on utilities~ Collections from the City's one cent sales tax increased 
$123 ,504 to $2,741 ,521, a 4.7% increase. This increase results from the effects of inflation on retail pricing. 
Collections from the gross receipts tax on utilities increased $9,217 or 0.6% to $1 ,435,129. 

In addition, the City receives capital improvements sales tax as shared by Jefferson County per contractual 
agreement. The monies received from this source are on a reimbursement basis for qualifying capital im­
provement expenditures. Capital improvement sales tax received-in fiscal 1997 totaled $514,926, an in­
crease of $514,926 or 100% over the prior year. 

Special assessment collections can fluctuate significantly from year to year. Collections of special assess­
ments for sanitary sewer subdistricts are typically higher during the first year of the ten year assessment due 
to prepayments. Fiscal year 1997 included first year assessments for three subdistricts. 

The license and permit revenue increased as a result of increased permit fees. 

Fines and court costs have risen as a result of increased volume and more aggressive judgments in the mu­
nicipal court. 

In recent years, the primary source of intergovernmental revenue has related to the 1993 flood disaster. 
However, in fiscal 1997, the majority of intergovernmental revenue consists of $1 ,521 ,095 in reimburse­
ments from the Economic Development Administration (EDA) for the City' s Tenbrook Industrial Road 
Project. Completion of this project is anticipated during fiscal 1998 . 
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The City's charges for services increased slightly in fiscal 1997 and are comprised mainly of fees for trash 
collection. Net profits of $2,891 on gross revenue of $487,806 were realized during the fiscal year. Solid 
waste collection in the City is provided under a contract with Meramec Hauling, a subsidiary of Waste Man­
agement, Inc. 

The increase in interest income results from both higher interest rates available on short term investments 
and higher average cash balances. 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended 
August 31, 1997 and the percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts. 

Increase Percent 
Percent (Decrease) Of Increase 

Expenditure Amount Of Total From 1996 (Decrease) 

General government $ 1,757,224 17.3% ($1,158,379) (39.7%) 
Public safety 2,849,882 28.1 (20,977) (0.7) 
Public works 300,416 2.9 12,156 4.2 
Highways and streets 4,173,537 41.2 3,102,797 289.8 
Parks and recreation 414,899 4.1 (23,870) (5.4) 
Health and sanitation 645 971 ~ 9 153 1.4 

Total $10 141 929 100 0% 1,920 880 23.4% 

Expenditures in the General Government category decreased due to the completion of the buyout and 
demolition of flood-damaged structures. The decrease in flood-related expenditures from $1 ,104,187 in the 
prior year accounts for the decrease in General Government spending. 

Spending for Public Safety decreased due to reduced spending for equipment. 

Street Department expenditures increased due to construction activity on major road improvement projects. 
A bridge on Old Lemay Ferry Road was replaced at a cost of $765,367. A bridge replacement on Starling 
Road was in progress with expenditures to date totaling $401,466. The Tenbrook Industrial Road Project 
was in progress with expenditures to date totaling $2,131,807. 

Health and Sanitation expenditures increased due to increased costs for solid waste collection. 

General Fund Balance 

The fund balance of the General Fund increased $459,781 during the year to a balance of $5,128,200 at 
August 31, 1997. This increase reflects revenues in excess of expenditures. 

Enterprise Operations 

The City' s enterprise operation is comprised of the sanitary sewer system. Providing sanitary sewer services 
throughout the City has been a major priority since the City's inception. Construction of sewer subdistricts 
for existing housing subdivisions and requiring developers to construct sewers for new developments has 
rapidly added new connections to the system. 
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The system continues to have net losses after depreciation, however, cash flow has been positive and the 
regular addition of customers serves to reduce these annual losses. 

Single Audit 

As a recipient of federal financial assistance, the City is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal 
control structure to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. As 
part of the City' s single audit, tests are performed to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure 
including the portion related to federal financial assistance programs. The results of the City' s single audit -
for the fiscal year ended August 31 , 1997 found no instances of material weaknesses in the internal control 
structure. 

Pension Trust Fund Operations 

The operations of the City of Arnold Police Pension Plan remained stable during fiscal 1997. The annual 
actuarial valuation continues to reflect a positive trend in the City's and employee's funding of the Police 
Pension Plan. 

Debt Administration 

At August 31 , 1997, the City had two major debt issues outstanding. These issues are $1 ,695,000 of certifi­
cates of participation (municipal complex), and $2,938,000 of sewer revenue bonds. The City has no gen­
eral obligation bonded debt. Under current Missouri statutes, the City's legal general obligation debt limit, 
based on 10% of the City' s total assessed valuation ofreal and personal property is $16,802,102. 

Cash Management 

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit. 
Interest earned on repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit totaled $384,691 for all funds for the 
year. The pension trust fund is invested in New England Life Insurance Company' s General Investment 
Account. Earnings for the pension fund totaled $112,028 for the year. 

The City' s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on 
its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All 
collateral on deposits was held by a financial institution' s trust department in the City' s name. 

Risk Management 

The City has been a member of Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association (MIRMA) since 
July 1, 1983 . MIRMA is a statewide governmental self-insurance pool providing property, liability and 
workers' compensation coverages to its members. The financial condition ofMIRMA is excellent. MlRMA 
has been able to significantly increase its self-insurance capacity and services, thereby providing its member­
ship superior coverage and cost savings. 

The City, assisted by MIRMA, seeks to provide supervisory and employee training and identification of 
hazardous conditions or procedures. The Police Department, in particular, utilizes computerized legal 
training prepared by a professional police legal advisor for all officers covering constitutional law as it relates 
to critical tasks performed by police officers. 
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OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit 

Missouri statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The certified public 
accounting firm of Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP, was selected by the City Council to perform this 
year's audit. The auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements and individual fund statements 
and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. 

Award 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certifi­
cate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial 
report for the fiscal year ended August 31, 1996. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national 
award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government 
financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such 
comprehensive annual financial report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and appli­
cable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of 
Achievement for the last eight consecutive fiscal years ended 1989 to 1996. We believe our current report 
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements and we are submitting it to 
the GFOA. 

Acknowledgments 

The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made possible by the cooperation of the 
entire administrative staff of the various departments of the City. I would also like to acknowledge the 
assistance of our independent public accountants of Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP in formulating this 
report. 

In closing, without the support of the Mayor and Council preparation of this report would not have been 
possible. 
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November 7, 1997 

Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the CITY OF 
ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) as of and for the year ended August 31 , 1997, as listed in the 
table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial state­
ments based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrol­
ler General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of mate­
rial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the ac­
counting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides area­
sonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all mate­
rial respects, the financial position of the City as of August 31 , 1997, and the results of its operations 
and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated Novem­
ber 7, 1997 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. The supplemental information as listed in the table of contents is pre­
sented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial 
statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material 
respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

□ 16100 Chesterfield Parkway South, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 314-532-9525, Fax 314-532-9055 
D 1000 Washington Square, P.O. Box 225, Washington, Missouri 63090-0225, 314-239-4785, Fax 314-239-5448 
Member: Independent Accountants International with Member Offices in Principal U.S. and International Cities. 



We did not audit the statistical data included in the statistical section of this report and, therefore, 
express no opinion thereon. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET- ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

AUGUST 31, 1997 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR AUGUST 31, 1996 

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary 
Fund Type Fund Type Fund Types Account Groups 

General General Totals 
Trust And Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Only) 

General Enterprise Agency Assets Debt 1997 1996 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 
Cash and cash equivalents s 1,527,794 391,203 1,918,997 4,722,049 
Investments 3,004,141 251,321 3,277,247 6,532,709 2,250,000 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes 976,357 976,357 583,991 
Special assessments 1,563,529 1,563,529 1,781 ,863 
Sewer service fees 77,056 77,056 48,643 
Intergovernmental 535,610 535,610 1,190,822 
Miscellaneous 80,196 5,018 85,214 76,131 

Due from other funds 130,479 24,683 155,162 320,435 
Prepaid items 145,550 145,550 111,828 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 44,661 1,848,223 1,892,884 1,909,568 
Capital improvements sales tax receivable 1,214,621 1,214,621 1,334,683 
Investments 200,000 251,321 451 ,321 440,000 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Land, buildings and improvements 2,320,948 9,965,945 12,286,893 12,039,830 
Machinery and equipment 359,574 1,239,338 1,598,912 1,598,913 
Automotive equipment 856,900 856,900 884,734 
Furniture and fixtures 133,949 133,949 131,040 
Sewer lines 1s;2s4,886 15,254,886 14,210,880 
Construction-in-process 245,341 245,341 251,052 
Less accumulated depreciation (4,743,897) (4,743,897) (4,364,758) 

Other debits: 
Amount available for debt service 200,000 200,000 200,000 
Amount to be provided for retirement of general long-term debt 1,570,001 1,570,001 1,702,039 

Total Assets And Other Debits s 9,422,938 16,260,994 3,301,930 12,196,132 1,770,001 42,951 ,995 41 ,423,743 

See notes to financial statements ---------------------------------------------------~(C...:o:..;n...:ti.::.nu.::.e:..:d:!....) 
Pagel 



J J J J I I J I I ) 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED) 

AUGUST 31 , 1997 
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR AllGllST 31, 1996 -------------------------------------------------

Govern mental Proprietary Fiduciary 
Fund Type Fund Type Fund Types Account Groups 

General Gcnenil Totals 
Trust And Fixed Long-Term (Mem orandum Only) 

General Enterprise Agency Assets Debt 1997 1996 

LIABILITIES, FUND EQU ITY 
AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 1, 11 3,572 96,83 1 1,2 10.403 484.469 
Accrued payro ll and compensated abse nces payable 276,447 17,836 294.283 3 19,733 
Due to other runds 24,683 I 30,479 155, 162 320.435 
Accrued interest payable 6 1,853 61 ,853 65,991 
Deferred re venues 2,8 I 8, 183 80,756 2,898,939 3.234.498 
Notes payab le 639,343 639.343 666.643 
Revenue bonds payable, net ol'bond discounts 2,878,36 1 2,878 .36 1 3,049,391 
Cap ital lease payable 1.770,00 1 1,770,00 1 1,902.039 
Deferred compensation benelits payable 430,249 430.249 329. 759 

Total Liab ilities 4,294,738 3,843,606 430,249 1,770,00 I I 0,338 ,594 I 0,372,958 

Fund Equity and Other Credits 
Investment in general lixed assets 12, 196, 132 12,1 96, 132 11,973,995 
Contributed capital 15 ,590,688 15,590,688 14 ,552.395 
Retained earnings (delieit) : 

Reserved 290,000 290,000 290,000 
Unreserved {3,463,300) (3 ,463,300) (3 , 173,3 51) 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for prepaid items 145,550 145.550 I 11.828 
Reserved for encumbrances 828,807 828,807 59,500 
Reserved for escrow deposit 200,000 200,000 200.000 
Reserved fo r employee retirement bene lits 2,871 ,681 2,87 1,681 2,739,327 
Unreserved: 

Designated for sewer subdistrict projects 1,046,644 1,046,644 1,50 1,828 
Designated fo r stree t projects 81 ,666 81 ,666 
Des ignated fo r da ta processing acquisi tions 65,002 65,002 65,002 
Designated liir lt1rniturc 37,091 37,091 40,000 
Designated ror com munity complex 500,000 500,000 676,506 
Designated lor use tax refunds 522,852 522,852 522,852 
Designated for neighborhood improvement projects 424,081 424,081 84,062 
Designa ted for stormwater projects 208,298 208,298 
Designated for police vehicles 50,000 50,000 
Undes ignated 1,0 18,209 1,0 18,209 1,406,84 1 

Total Fund Equity And Other Credits 5, 128,200 I 2,4 17,388 2,87 1,68 1 12,196, 132 32.6 13,40 I 3 1.050. 785 

Total Liabi lities. Fund Equity 
And Other Credits $ 9,422,938 16,260,994 3,301 ,930 12.196. 132 1,770,00 1 42,951 ,995 41 ,423.743 

Sec notes to financial statements 
Page -I 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPE-GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1996 ---------

REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

treets 
at, n 
tation 

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 1 

FUND BALANCE, AUGUST 31 

See notes to financial statements 

Totals 
(Memorandum Only) 

1997 1996 

357,203 

,3 

459,781 

4,668,419 

$5,128,200 

5,3 77,496 
282,521 
284,441 
341 ,807 

1,3 I 8,109 
578,22 1 
202,293 
319,770 

8,704,658 

2,549,763 
2,870,859 

288,260 
1,070,740 

438,769 
636,818 
365,840 

8,221 ,049 

483 ,609 

4,184,810 

4,668,419 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMBINED ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL­
GOVERNMENT AL FUND TYPE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 
------------------------

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and court costs 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Highways and streets 
Parks and recreation 
Health and sanitation 

Capital outlay 

Total Operating Expenses 

REVENUESOVER(UNDER)EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER I 

FUND BALANCE, AUGUST 31 

See notes to financial statements 

Budget 

$6, 166,283 
240,000 
350,000 
318,000 

2,480,631 
566,600 
162,500 
174,500 

I 0,458,514 

1,335,366 
2,940,343 

287,555 
4,583 ,709 

414,610 
676,442 
248 ,968 

10,486,993 

($28 ,479) 

Over 
(Under) 

Actual Budget 

6,086,870 (79,413) 
357,203 117,203 
297,466 (52,534) 
379,466 61 ,466 

2,340,801 (139,830) 
580,148 13 ,548 
283 ,246 120,746 
276,510 102,010 

10,601 ,710 143 ,196 

1,368,316 32,950 
2,847,853 (92,490) 

300,416 12,86I 
4,110,097 (473 ,612) 

414,899 289 
645 ,971 (30,471) 
454,377 205 ,409 

10, 141 ,929 (345 ,064) 

459,781 488,260 

4,668,419 

$5 , 128,200 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN DEFICIT - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1996 

1997 1996 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Sewer service fees $1 ,011 ,190 933 ,583 
Sewer connection fees 48 ,410 46,334 
Other 10,903 

Total Operating Revenues 1,059,600 990,820 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Cost of services 827,631 708,597 
Administration 114,000 113 ,935 
Depreciation and amortization 387,359 389,698 

Total Operating Expenses 1,328,990 1,212,230 

OPERA TING LOSS (269,390) (221 ,410) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 155 ,873 163,385 
Interest expense (176,432) (182,707) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (20,559) (19,322) 

NET LOSS (289,949) (240,732) 

DEFICIT, SEPTEMBER I (2,883,351) (2,642,619) 

DEFICIT, AUGUST 31 ($3 , 173 ,300) (2,883 ,351) 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS -

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE - PENSION TRUST FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 --------

1997 1996 

ADDITIONS 
Employer contributions $ 188,294 228,375 
Employee contributions 118,104 108,170 
Investment income 112,028 111,659 

Total Additions 418,426 448,204 

DEDUCTIONS 
Administration 12,054 19,757 
Benefits 274,018 550,624 
Refunds 51,962 

Total Deductions 286,072 622,343 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 132,354 (174,139) 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION 
BENEFITS, SEPTEMBER 1 2,739,327 2,913,466 

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION 
BENEFITS, AUGUST 31 $2,871,681 2,739,327 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1996 

1997 1996 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Operating loss ($269,390) (221,410) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 387,359 389,698 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable (28,634) (10,041) 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable (10,201) 62,757 
Accrued payroll and compensated absences payable (990) 1,172 
Due to other funds (140,680) (526,983) 
Deferred revenue 2,354 3,550 

Total Adjustments 209,208 (79,847) 
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (60,182) (301,257) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Proceeds from notes payable 205,037 
Principal paid on notes payable (27,300) (51,100) 
Principal paid on revenue bonds payable (179,250) (178,250) 
Interest paid on revenue bonds payable (176,432) (182,707) 
Payments for capital acquisitions (1,038,293) (180,890) 
Capital contributed by customers 1,038,293 163,392 

Net Cash Used In Capital And Related 
Financing Activities (382,982) (224,518) 

Cash flows provided by investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,999,143 2,400,000 
Purchases of investments (2,001,785) (2,350,000) 
Interest received on investments 155,873 163,385 

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 153,231 213,385 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (289,933) (312,390) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 1 2,529,359 2,841,749 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AUGUST 31 $2,239,426 2,529,359 

See notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
___________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies applied by the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) in the 

preparation of the accompanying combined general purpose financial statements are summarized below: 

1. Reporting Entity 

The general purpose financial statements of the City include the financial activities of the 
City and any component units. The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting 
entity are based on the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14. The City is the primary 
government unit. Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to 
the primary government, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the compo­
nent unit's Board or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose 
a financial burden on the City. 

2. Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are ac­
counted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabili­
ties, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses. Government resources are allo­
cated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are 
to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds 
are grouped in the general purpose financial statements as follows : 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

General Fund -- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 

fund . -

PROPRIETARY FUND 

Enterprise Funds -- Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are fi­
nanced and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises--where the intent 
of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where 
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses 
incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, manage­
ment control, accountability or other purposes. The City's enterprise fund is the sewer 
fund . 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Trust and Agency Funds -- Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held 
by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS -----------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

2. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

governments and/or other funds. Pension Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the 
same manner as proprietary funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal li­
abilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

ACCOUNT GROUP 

General Fixed Assets -- The general fixed assets used in the City's operations are to be 
accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group rather than in the governmental 
funds . 

General Long-Term Debt -- Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from govern­
mental funds are accounted for in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. 

3. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized 
in the accounts and reported in the general purpose financial statements. Basis of ac­
counting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement 
focus applied. 

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Their revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current 
assets. Their expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is in­
curred. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their reve­
nues are recognized when they are earned and their expenses are recognized when they are 
incurred. 

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the City has elected to apply 
only applicable F ASB Statements and Interpretations issued before November 30, 1989 in 
its accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary operations. 

4. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the gen­
eral purpose financial statements: 

a. On or before July 8, all departments submit requests for appropriations to the City's 
budget committee so that a budget may be prepared . 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ---------------------- -

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

4. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued) 

b. During August, the operating budget is presented to the City Council for review. 
The operating budget includes proposal expenditures and the means of financing 
them. 

c. Public hearing meetings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

d. Prior to September 1, the budget is adopted by the City Council. 

e. Budgets are adopted on a basis generally consistent with generally accepted ac­
counting principles. Expenditures modified for some year-end accrual may not le­
gally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. 

f. Current year budget includes amendments. Budget amendments must be approved 
by the City Council. 

5. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The City considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. State statutes authorize the government to invest in 
obligations of the U.S . Treasury, federal agencies, commercial paper, corporate bonds and 
repurchase agreements. The Pension Trust Fund is also authorized to invest in corporate 
common or preferred stocks, bonds and mortgages, real or personal property and other 
evidence of indebtedness or ownership, but excluding any debt of the City itself, and indi­
vidual insurance policies. Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for in­
vestments in the Employees Deferred Compensation Agency Fund which are reported at 
market value. 

6. Prepaid Expenses 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year-end 
are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items are equally offset by a fund balance reserve 
which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even though 
they are a component of net current assets. 

7. Fixed Assets 

General fixed assets acquired for general governmental purposes are recorded as expen­
ditures in the governmental funds. Assets are valued at original or estimated original cost. 
Contributed fixed assets are stated at estimated fair market value at the date of contribu­
tion. 

Fixed assets consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, including roads, 
bridges, curbs and gutters, streets, sidewalks and drainage systems, have not been capital 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS -----------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

7. Fixed Assets (Continued) 

ized. Such assets normally are immovable and of value only to the City. Therefore, the 
purpose of stewardship for capital expenditures is satisfied without recording these assets. 

No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets. Assets acquired under 
lease/purchase agreements are recorded at the inception of the agreement. 

Property, plant and equipment owned by the Enterprise Funds are stated at cost or, in the 
case of contributed fixed assets, at the estimated fair market value at the date of contribu­
tion. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Asset 

Machinery and equipment 
Treatment plants, buildings and improvements 
Sewer Lines 

Depreciation expense for the year ended August 31, 1997 was $379,140. 

8. Encumbrances 

Years 

8 
10-30 

50 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments 
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applica­
ble appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the gov­
ernmental fund type. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations 
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments 
will be honored during the subsequent year. 

9. Due To/From Other Funds 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as 
"due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet. 

10. Compensated Absences 

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the gov­
ernmental fund that will pay it. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds 
is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrued to employees. 
No liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
____________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

11. Fund Equity 

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants or 
contributions from developers, customers or other funds . Reserves represent those por­
tions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a specific 
future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial 
resources. 

12. Sewer Connection Fees 

Sewer connection fees are accounted for as revenues only to the extent the fees equal the 
cost of physical connection to the system. Amounts that substantially exceed the cost to 
connect are accounted for as additions to contributed capital. 

13. Bond Discounts 

Bond discounts for the proprietary fund type are deferred and amortized over the term of 
the bonds. Bond discounts are presented as a reduction of the face amount of bonds pay­
able. 

Amortization expenses for the year ended August 31, 1997 was $8,219. 

14. Interfund Transactions 

Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the re­
sources are to be expended are recorded as operating transfers. Such transfers are re­
ported as other financing sources (uses) in the governmental fund types and operating 
transfers in the proprietary fund type. 

Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds are recorded as equity 
transfers and, accordingly, are reported as additions or deductions from fund balances of 
governmental fund types and additions or deductions of contributed capital or retained 
earnings, as appropriate, of the proprietary fund type. 

15. Restricted Assets 

Certain funds generated by the sewer system are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use is limited by the sewer system revenue bond ordinances. 
The "bond account" is used only for the payment of principal and interest on the revenue 
bonds. The "depreciation and replacement account" is to be expended only for repairs or 
replacements to the sewer system. The "bond reserve account" is to be used only to pay 
bonds at maturity or interest as it accrues when and to the extent other funds are not 
available for this purpose. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -----------------------

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

15. Restricted Assets (Continued) 

Certain general fund monies are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because 
their use is limited by covenants of the capital lease agreement. The "reserve account" is 
to be used solely for the purpose of making lease payments on the applicable due dates 
when and to the extent other funds are not available for this purpose. The "lease payment 
account" is used only for the payment of the principal and interest on the lease obligation. 

Certain capital improvement sales tax receivables are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use and availability is limited by the sales tax agreement with 
Jefferson County. The funds are to be used for capital improvements to publicly main­
tained roads and become available upon the City's request for reimbursement of expendi­
tures on approved projects. 

16. Total Columns on Combined Statements - Overview 

Total columns on the combined statements - overview are captioned "Memorandum Only" 
to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these col­
umns do not present financial position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a con­
solidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

17. Comparative Data 

Comparative data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying general 
purpose financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's 
financial position and operations. However, complete comparative data (i.e., presentation 
of prior year totals by fund type in each of the statements) have not been presented since 
their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read. 

18. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Allowance for uncollectible receivables is as follows : 

General Fund 
Enterprise Fund 

19. Reclassifications 

$12,194 
27,863 

$40 057 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the August 3 l, 1996 general purpose financial 
statements in order to conform to the presentation of the August 31 , 1997 general purpose 
financial statements. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_____________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

1. Deposits 

The City' s bank deposits are required by state law to be secured by the deposit of certain 
securities specified at RSMO 30.270 with the City or trustee institution. The value of the 
securities must amount to the total of the City' s cash not insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. As of August 31, 1997, the City' s bank deposits were fully se­
cured. 

2. Investments 

The City' s investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk 
assumed by the entity at year-end as: (1) insured or registered with securities held by the 
City or its agent in the City's name, (2) uninsured and unregistered for which the securities 
are held by the financial institution' s trust department or agent in the City' s name or (3) 
uninsured and unregistered for which the securities are held by the financial institution's 
trust department, the broker-dealer, but not in the City' s name. 

Repurchase agreements 
Investment in pension plan 

pooled investments 
Guaranteed investment contracts 
Deferred compensation fund 

Categories 
1 2 3 

$ - 5,695,783 

August 31i 1997 
Carrying Market 
Amount Value 

5,695,783 5,718,604 

2,848,312 2,848,312 
1,765,126 1,765,126 

428 935 428 935 

Total Investments $10 738 156 10 760 977 

NOTE C - FIXED ASSETS 

A summary of changes in general fixed assets is as follows : 

For The Year Ended August 3L 1997 

Land, buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Automotive equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

Balance 
August 3li 1996 

$ 9,718,882 
1,239,339 

884,734 
131 040 

$1.L973 995 

Balance 
Additions Reductions August 3li 1997 

247,063 

64,209 
2 909 

314181 

92,044 

92 044 

9,965,945 
1,239,339 

856,899 
l33l949 

12,196,132 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consisted of the following: 

General Long-Term Debt Account Group 

Capital lease $2,400,000 Certificates of Participation for construction 
of municipal building complex, 1986 due in annual installments 
through April 1, 2006, interest payable at 8.75%. 

Capital lease $102,377, computer hardware and software, 1996, due in 
monthly installments through January 2001 , interest payable at 6.4%. 

August 31, 1997 

$1,695,000 

75,001 

$1.770.001 

A schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital leases and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments as of August 31 , 1997 is as follows : 

For The Years 
Ended August 31 

1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

2003-2006 
Total Minimum Lease Payments 

Less - Amount representing interest 

Present Value of Future 
Minimum Lease Payments 

Municipal 
Complex 

$ 268,312 
262,812 
261 ,876 
260,062 
256,542 

1,198,054 
2,507,658 

812,658 

$1 695 ,000 

A summary of changes in general long-term debt is as follows : 

Computer 

25,960 
23,963 
23 ,963 

9,983 

83 ,869 

8 868 

75 001 

For The Year Ended August 31. 1997 

Total 

294,272 
286,775 
285,839 
270,045 
256,542 

1,198,054 
2,591,527 

821,526 

1,770,001 

Balance 
August 31, 1996 

Balance 
Additions Reductions August 31, 1997 

Capital leases $1 ,902,039 132 038 1,770.001 

Page 17 



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
___________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Enterprise Funds 

Revenue Bonds: August 31, 1997 

$1 ,270,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 1992, due in annual 
installments through July 1, 2012, interest payable at 4.25% to 6.55%. $1,090,000 

$1 ,135,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 due in annual 
annual installments through July 1, 2012, interest payable at 3.4% to 5.4%. 1,013,000 

$1,240,000 Sewerage System Refunding Revenue bonds, Series 1994 
due in annual installments through December 1, 2004, interest payable 
at 3.0% to 5.3%. 835,000 

2,938,000 

Less - Unamortized debt discount 59,639 

$2,878,361 

The principal maturity of the bonds, excluding amounts maturing after August 31 , 1997, which were 

remitted prior to the current fiscal year-end, are as follows: 

For The Years Series Series Series 
Ended August 31 1994 1993 1992 Total 

1998 $125,000 30,000 10,000 165,000 
1999 100,000 42,000 45,000 187,000 
2000 70,000 44,000 45,000 159,000 
2001 125,000 46,000 50,000 221,000 
2002 125,000 48,000 55 ,000 228,000 

2003-2014 290,000 803 000 885 000 1,978,000 
835,000 1,013 ,000 1,090,000 2,938,000 

Less - Unamortized discounts 12,785 22 797 24 057 59,639 

Net Revenue Bonds Outstanding $822,215 990,203 1,065,943 2,878,361 

The revenue bonds dated June 1, 1992 maturing after January 1, 2002 may be called for redemption and 

payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing June I, 2002, 

at redemption prices set forth below ( expressed as percentages of principal amount) plus accrued interest 

thereon to the date of redemption: 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
____________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2002 and December 1, 2002 
June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2004 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Prices 

102% 
101 
100 

The revenue bonds dated August 1, 1993 maturing after January 1, 2003 may be called for redemption 

and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on each June 1 and December 1 commencing June 1, 

2003, at redemption prices set forth below (expressed as percentages of principal amount) plus accrued 

interest thereon to the date of redemption: 

Redemption Dates 

June 1, 2003 and December 1, 2003 
June 1, 2004 and December 1, 2004 
June 1, 2005 and thereafter 

Redemption 
Prices 

102% 
101 
100 

The revenue bonds dated March 1, 1994 maturing after September 1, 2001 may be called for redemption 

and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part on any interest payment date, commencing Septem­

ber 1, 2000, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest thereon to 

the date of redemption. 

The bond ordinances require that the City establish rates and charges for its sewer services, such that the 

revenues derived from the sewage system are sufficient to provide for the payment of principal and inter­

est on the revenue bonds and for the operation and maintenance of the sewage system. 

Notes payable: 

SRF - 1992, no interest 
SRF - 1993 , no interest 

August 31, 1997 

$418,870 
220,473 

$639 343 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
_____________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

In conjunction with the bonds dated June 1, 1992 a reserve account has been established with a no­

interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of Missouri. 

When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 50% of the out­

standing principal amount of such bonds. The reserve account is held in trust. As the principal amount 

of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve account will be reduced such that the reserve 

account will equal 50% of the remaining principal balance of such bonds. 

In conjunction with the bonds dated August 1, 1993 a reserve account has been established with a no 

interest loan funded with federal capitalization grants and matching funds from the State of Missouri. 

When fully funded, this loan (reserve account) will be funded in an amount equal to 70% of the out­

standing principal amount of such bonds. The reserve account is held in trust. As the principal amount 

of such bonds is repaid, the amounts held in the reserve account will be reduced such that the reserve 

account will equal 70% of the remaining principal balance of such bonds. 

The City is in compliance with significant requirements regarding deposits and debt service payments. 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS 

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (City of Arnold, Missouri Police 

Pension Plan) which covers all members of the organized police force and participates in the state-wide 

Missouri Local Government Retirement System, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee 

pension plan which covers all of the City' s full-time employees except for members of the police force . 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold Police Pension Plan 

Plan Description and Provisions 

The Plan is a single employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all of the City's full­
time police employees. The Plan was created and is governed by City ordinance. The 
payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the year ended August 31, 1997, was 
$1 ,389,449 and the City's total payroll was $3,424,547. 

The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report. The financial information 
is included as a Trust Fund in the City's general purpose financial statements. Information 
about the Plan is provided in a summary plan description. 

Current membership in the Plan is comprised of the following: 

Group 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Vested terminated employees and active employees 

August 31, 1997 

0 
42 

Employees attaining the age of 55 who have completed five or more years of service are 
entitled to benefits based upon average earnings and years of service. The Plan also pro­
vides early retirement, death and disability. 

City ordinance requires each member to contribute 8½% of gross salary. The ordinance 
requires the City to contribute the actuarially computed amounts, which together with em­
ployee contributions and investment income, will cover the costs of the Plan. 

Funding Status and Progress 

Valuation For The 
Actuarial Years 

Ended August 31 

1997 
1996 
1995 
1994 

Pension Plan 
Actuarial 
Value Of 

Assets 

$2,871,681 
2,739,327 
2,913 ,402 
2,679,128 

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability {AAL) 

$3,702,791 
3,608,958 
3,588,335 
3,393,453 

Unfunded 
AAL 

{UAAL) 

$831,110 
869,631 
674,933 
714,325 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -----------------------

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

Pension Plan 
UAALAs A 

Valuation For The Percentage 
Actuarial Years Funded Covered Of Covered 
Ended August 31 Ratio Payroll Payroll 

1997 77.6% $1,389,449 59.8% 
1996 75 .9 1,272,593 68.3 
1995 81.2 1,343,422 50.2 
1994 78.9 1,184,870 60.3 

Schedule of Emulo:yer Contributions 
Annual 

For The Years Required Actual Percentage 
Ended August 31 Contribution Contribution Contributed 

1997 $215,788 $188,294 87.2% 
1996 234,880 228,375 97 .2 
1995 170,795 182,400 106.8 
1994 160,930 163,910 101.9 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part 
of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional information as of the latest ac­
tuarial valuation follows: 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return 
Projected salary increases 

Annual Pension Cost 

Frozen entry age 
Using assumed rate of 7% over 30 years 

At contract value 

7.0% 
4.5% 

Current year annual pension costs for the Plan are shown in the trend information. Annual 
required contributions were not made by the Plan. There is a net pension obligation for 
the Plan. Unless otherwise indicated, information is provided as of the latest actuarial 
valuation, August 3 1, 1997. 

Trend Information 

The historical trend information about the Plan is presented herewith to help users assess 
the Plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

1. City of Arnold Police Pension Plan (Continued) 

assets to pay benefits when due and make comparison with other Public Employee Re­
tirement Systems (PERS). 

Valuation For The 
Actuarial Years 

Ended August 31 

1997 
1996 
1995 

Pension Plan 
Annual 
Pension 

Cost 

$215,788 
234,880 
170,795 

Percentage 
Contributed 

87.2% 
97.2 

106.8 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

$831,110 
869,631 
674,933 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) 

Plan Description 

The City participates in LAGERS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement 
system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local government 
entities in Missouri. LAGERS is a defined benefit pension plan which provides retirement, 
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. LAGERS was created and 
is governed by statute, section RSMo. 70.600 - 70.755. As such, it is the system's respon­
sibility to administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General As­
sembly. The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 40l(a) and it is tax 
exempt. 

LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to LAGERS, 
P.O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, MO 65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334. 

Funding Policy 

The City's full-time employees do not contribute to the pension plan. The City is required 
by state statute to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 11.9% 
(general) of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members are 
determined by the governing body of the City. The contribution provisions of the City are 
established by state statute. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For 1997, the City's annual pension cost of $209,928 was equal to the required and actual 
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the February 28/29, 
1995 and/or 1996 annual actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. 
The actuarial assumptions included ( a) a rate of return on the investment of present and 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
____________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE E - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued} 

2. Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) (Continued) 

future assets of 7.0% per year, compounded annually, before retirement and 4.0% per 
year, compounded annually, after retirement; (b) projected salary increases of 4.0% per 
year, compounded annually, attributable to inflation; (c) additional projected salary in­
creases ranging from 0.0% to 4.0% per year, depending on age attributable to senior­
ity/merit; and (d) pre- and post-retirement mortality based on the 1984 Group Annuity 
Mortality table set back no years for men and 6 years for women. The actuarial value of 
assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in 
the market value of investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. 
The amortization period at February 28, 1997 was 27 years. 

Three-year trend information follows : 

For The Years 
Ended June 30 

1997 
1996 
1995 

Annual Pension 
Cost (APC) 

$209,928 
200,893 
168,307 

Schedule of funding progress follows : 

Entry Age 
Actuarial 

For The Valuation 
Years Ended 

February 28/29 

Actuarial 
Value 

Of Assets Accrued Liability 

1997 
1996 
1995 

For The Valuation 
Years Ended 

February 28/29 

1997 
1996 
1995 

$1,913,543 
1,681 ,692 
1,3 21 ,061 

Funded 
Ratio 

63% 
55 
53 

$3,014,899 
3,033 ,985 
2,493,328 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

$1,645,155 
1,798,708 
1,569,811 

Percentatge Of 
APC Contributed 

100% 
100 
100 

Unfunded Accrued 
Liability UAL 

$1,101,356 
1,352,293 
1,172,267 

UAL As A 
Percentage Of 

Covered Payroll 

67% 
75 
75 

Note: The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include the assets and pres­
ent value of benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve 
Fund. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ----------------------

NOTE F - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue 

Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their 

salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, 

retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 

NOTE G - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

The City maintains one Enterprise Fund which is intended to be self-supporting through sewer system 

user fees charged for services to the public. Financial segment information as of and for the year ended 

August 31 , 1997 is presented below: 

Operating revenues 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Operating loss 
Net loss 
Current capital contributions 
Property, plant and equipment additions 
Net working capital 
Total assets 
Bonds payable, net of bond discount 
Total equity 

NOTE H - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES 

Individual interfund assets and liabilities are as follows: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 
Police Pension Trust Fund 
Deferred Compensation Agency Fund 

Due Fromff o Other Funds 
Payable Fund 

Sewer Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 

$1 ,059,600 
387,359 

(269,390) 
(289,949) 

1,038,293 
1,044,005 

358,610 
16,260,994 
2,878,361 

12,417,388 

Amount 

$130,479 
23 ,369 

1,314 

$155,162 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
____________________ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE I - PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are levied. Taxes levied and un­

collected are carried as an asset of the general fund . An allowance has been established for the estimated 

uncollectible property taxes. 

The City' s property tax calendar is as follows: 

a. Property is assessed by the County on January 1 each year. 

b. The tax levy ordinance is adopted and filed with the county clerk on or before Septem­
ber 1. 

c. Property taxes are due to be collected on or before December 31 . 

d. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. 

NOTE J - INSURANCE 

The City is a member of the Missouri Intergovernmental Risk Management Association ("MIRMA"), a 

state-wide governmental self-insurance pool which provides property, liability and workers ' compensa­

tion coverages to its participating members in a single comprehensive multiline package. The various 

lines of coverage are not available individually and the membership is limited to municipalities and mu­

nicipally owned utilities. The City' s policy covers all real and personal property owned by the City ex­

cept sewer lines. The policy is for replacement cost and expires June 30, 1997. 

MIRMA is funded by annual member assessments calculated at a rate per $100 of annual payroll which 

applies to all lines of coverage on a composite basis. These funds are used to pay losses within specific 

risk retention limits shared equally by all members; purchase excess insurance which provides a transfer of 

catastrophic risk to private insurance carriers; purchase services such as claims administration, loss pre-

vention and data processing; and pay administrative expenses. Should actual insurance losses exceed 

MIRMA' s estimates, the City could be required to contribute additional funds . Management believes the 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS - ---------------------

NOTE J - INSURANCE (Continued) 

risk of additional loss is minimal and any additional contributions that may be required would not materi-

ally impact the overall operations of the City. The City paid an assessment totaling $134,193 for 

MIRMA' s fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 and has paid an assessment totaling $174,660 for the year 

ending June 30, 1998. 

NOTE K - DEFICIT BALANCES 

The Enterprise Fund had a deficit retained earnings balance of $3 ,173,300. The fund deficit is offset by 

contributed capital. 

NOTE L - INTERFUND ADMINISTRATION FEE 

During the year, the Sewer System Fund paid $114,000 to the General Fund for administrative costs 

incurred by the General Fund relating to the operation of the Sewer System Fund. This fee is included in 

miscellaneous revenue in the General Fund. 

NOTE M - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

During the fiscal year ended August 31 , 1997, the enterprise fund ' s contributed capital increased as 

follows: 

Source 

Contributed capital, August 31 , 1996 
Developers - sewer lines added during year 
Customers - sewer lines added during year 

Contributed capital, August 31 , 1997 

NOTE N - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

$14,552,395 
901 ,920 
136,373 

$15590688 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 

agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already col-
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -----------------------

NOTE N - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

lected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may 

be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, 

if any, to be immaterial. 

The City is defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently deter­

minable, in the opinion of the City's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have material ad­

verse effect on the financial condition of the City. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION -----------------

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SECTION 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION -

GENERALFUND-SCHEDULEOFREVENUES-BUDGETANDACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 

Over 
(Under) 

Budget Actual Budget 

TAXES 
Pr $ 546,500 21,028 

3,712,783 (253,003) 
Public utilities gross reccjpts 1,345,000 90,129 

I 490,000 33,122 
72,000 29,311 

otal Tax s 6,166,283 (79,413) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 240,000 357,203 117,203 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 350,000 297,466 (52,534) 

FINES AND COURT COSTS 318,000 379,466 61,466 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 2,480,631 2,340,801 (139,830) 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 566,600 580,148 13,548 

INTEREST 162,500 283,246 120,746 

OTHER 
Sewer administration 114,000 114,000 
Other 60,500 162,510 102,010 

Total Other 174,500 276,510 102,010 

TOTAL REVENUE $10,458,514 10,601,710 143,196 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - GENERAL FUND -

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 

Over 
(Under) 

Budget Actual Budget 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
General and administrative $ 726,267 713,089 (13,178) 
Mayor and council 67,993 63,638 (4,355) 

~c· .urt 75,805 65,848 (9,957) 
Administrator 119,473 114,93 (4,537) 
Treasurer 20,046 21,450 1,404 
Finance 113,367 113,116 (251) 
Collector of revenue 90,705 84,135 (6,570) 
~!'IW).'. 38,745 626 17,523 
Elections 14,500 17,876 3,376 
Planning commission 68,465 69,384 919 
Flood emergency 48,576 48,576 

Total General Government 1,335,366 1,368,316 32,950 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
olice 2,374,622 (27,563) 

Rolice boaro 3,012 (895) 
295,242 (26,932) 

· mission 267,467 (37,100) 

Total Public Safety 2,940,343 2,847,853 (92,490) 

PUBLIC WORKS 287,555 300,416 12,861 

IDGHWAYSANDSTREETS 4,583,709 4,110,097 (473,612) 

PARKS AND RECREATION 414,610 414,899 289 

HEALTH AND SANITATION 
Health department 93,804 74,446 (19,358) 
Rabies control 39,363 61,013 21,650 
Vector control 19,375 25,597 6,222 
Solid waste 523,900 484,915 (38,985) 

Total Health And Sanitation 676,442 645,971 (30,471) 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 248,968 454,377 205,409 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $10,486,993 10,141,929 (345,064) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES 

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS - COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
AUGUST 31, 1997 

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR AUGUST 31, 1996 ----------------

ASSETS 
Investments 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

Liabilities 
Deferred compensation payable 

Fund Equity 
Fund balance: 

Reserved for employees' 
retirement system 

Total Liabilities And 
Fund Equity 

Pension 
Trust Fund 

Police 
Employees 

$2,848,312 
23,369 

$2,871,681 

$ 

2,871 ,681 

$2,871,681 

Agency 
Fund 

Deferred 
Compensa- Totals 
tion Plan 1997 1996 

428,935 3,277,247 3,019,810 
1,314 24,683 49,276 

430,249 3,301,930 3,069,086 

430,249 430,249 329,759 

2,871,681 2,739,327 

430,249 3,301,930 3,069,086 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE -

DEFERRED COMPENSATION AGENCY FUND -
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1997 --------------------

ASSETS 
Investments 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deferred compensation payable 

Balance 
August 31, 

1996 

$ 326,381 
3,378 

$ 329,759 

$ 329,759 

Balance 
August 31, 

Additions Reductions 1997 

121,756 19,202 428,935 
2,064 1,314 

121,756 21,266 430,249 

121,756 21,266 430,249 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES 

OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY SOURCE 
AUGUST 31, 1997 AND 1996 --------------------------

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 
Land, buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Automotive equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

Total General Fixed Assets 

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE 
General Fund 

See notes to financial statements 

1997 

$ 9,965,945 
1,239,338 

856,900 
133,949 

$12,196,132 

$12,196,132 

1996 

9,718,882 
1,239,339 

884,734 
131,040 

11,973,995 

11 ,973,995 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
AUGUST 31, 1997 

Land, 
Buildings Machinery Furniture .. 

and Improve- and Automotive and 
Function And Activity ments Equipment Equipment Fixtures Total 

... 
General Government: 

General and 
administrative $ 9,679,105 337,576 23,599 10,040,280 

Mayor and council 7,571 7,571 
Municipal court 3,603 3,603 
Administrator 12,386 2,834 15,220 
Finance 3,852 27,560 31,412 
Collector of revenue 10,199 10,199 
Attorney 2,865 2,865 
Planning commission 2,587 2,587 

Total General 
Government 9,679,105 341,428 12,386 80,818 10,113,737 

Public Safety: 
Police 238,496 249,806 34,280 522,582 -
Police board 176 176 
Dispatching 190,609 1,288 191,897 
Building commission 9,991 41,432 6,663 58,086 

Total Public Safety 439,096 291,238 42,407 772,741 

Public Works 62,425 51,809 6,874 121,108 

Highways and Streets 313,909 360,239 974 675,122 

Parks and Recreation 286,840 69,653 101 ,459 1,148 459,100 

Health and Sanitation: 
Health department 715 12,494 1,728 14,937 
Rabies control 4,184 14,715 18,899 
Vector control 7,928 12,560 20,488 

Total Health And 
Sanitation 12,827 39,769 1,728 54,324 

Total General 
Fixed Assets $ 9,965,945 1,239,338 856,900 133,949 12,196,132 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF CHANGES 

IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
AUGUST 31, 1997 

Balance Balance 
August 31, August 31, 

Function And Activity 1996 Additions Deductions 1997 

General Government: 
General and 

administrative $ 9,793,217 247,063 10,040,280 
Mayor and council 4,662 2,909 7,571 
Municipal court 3,603 3,603 
Administrator 15,220 15,220 
Finance 31,412 31 ,412 
Collector of revenue 10,199 10,199 
Attorney 2,865 2,865 
Planning commission 2,587 2,587 

Total General 
Government 9,863,765 249,972 10,113,737 

Public Safety: 
Police 520,872 1,710 522,582 
Police board 176 176 
Dispatching 191,897 191,897 
Building commission 73,048 14,962 58,086 

Total Public Safety 785,993 1,710 14,962 772,741 

Public Works 165,994 44,886 121 ,108 

Highways and Streets 644,819 62,500 32,197 675,122 

Parks and Recreation 459,100 459,100 

Health and Sanitation: 
Health department 14,937 14,937 
Rabies control 18,899 18,899 
Vector control 20,488 20,488 

Total Health And 
Sanitation 54,324 54,324 

Total General 
Fixed Assets $11,973,995 314,182 92,045 12,196,132 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Highways Parks 
Fiscal General Public Public And And Health And Capital 
Year Government Safety Works Streets Recreation Sanitation Outlay (1) Total 

1988 $ 1,059,869 $ 1,956,097 $ 219,318 $ 550,149 $ 275,550 $ 475,297 $2,371,450 $6,907,730 
1989 1,066,971 2,160,608 233,505 1,340,155 265,166 463,420 1,051,515 6,581,340 
1990 1,163,727 2,026,376 263,605 1,161,482 297,679 476,441 259,022 5,648,332 
1991 1,136,027 2,100,552 250,707 627,779 298,359 508,555 21,047 4,943,026 
1992 1,561,120 2,311,619 269,059 781,554 322,224 518,080 326,633 6,090,289 
1993 1,414,608 2,428,800 295,634 1,002,916 353,331 545,650 664,119 6,705,058 
1994 2,990,274 2,652,954 301,829 1,360,285 431,731 571,777 232,990 8,541,840 
1995 6,005,996 2,860,774 306,690 946,103 421,626 624,088 490,526 11,655,803 
1996 2,549,763 2,870,859 288,260 1,070,740 438,769 636,818 365,840 8,221,049 
1997 1,368,316 2,847,853 300,416 4,110,097 414,899 645,971 454,377 10,141,929 

(1) Capital outlay includes the construction of the municipal complex during fiscal years 1988 and 1989. 
Funding for this project was provided through the proceeds of a capital lease in the amount of $2,420,000. 
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Special Licenses Fines And 
Fiscal Assess- And Court 
Year Taxes ments Permits Costs 

1988 $3,829,050 $305,373 $ 95,116 $ 88,724 
1989 4,552,201 141,924 101,992 95,661 
1990 4,470,199 397,464 181,681 127,560 
1991 4,334,196 216,170 213,846 162,900 
1992 4,637,459 210,240 222,763 192,010 
1993 5,140,436 178,106 237,365 246,501 
1994 5,714,338 208,318 288,693 252,962 
1995 5,701,074 237,361 267,284 335,820 
1996 5,377,496 282,521 284,441 341,807 
1997 6,086,870 357,203 297,466 379,466 

I 

lntergovern-
mental 

$ 3,496 
30,022 
29,307 
24,749 

427,276 
592,749 

1,707,256 
4,648,881 
1,318,109 
2,340,801 

I J J 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Charges 
For Miscel-

Services Interest laneous Total 

$ 51,487 $237,450 $175,349 $4,786,045 
60,609 153,291 169,900 5,305,600 
78,036 109,340 148,569 5,542,156 

364,333 118,900 155,725 5,590,819 
499,956 135,320 187,160 6,512,184 
514,676 89,453 225,081 7,224,367 
537,164 122,505 322,927 9,154,163 
566,582 146,063 252,311 12,155,376 
578,221 202,293 319,770 8,704,658 
580,148 283,246 276,510 10,601,710 

I 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Public 
Utility 
Gross 

Fiscal Property Sales Receipts Motor Other 
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Fuel Tax Taxes Total 

1988 $ 363,697 $1,935,774 $1,183,832 $300,582 $45,165 $3,829,050 
1989 406,281 2,655,760 1,145,833 312,342 31,985 4,552,201 
1990 427,325 2,549,627 1,136,065 312,315 44,867 4,470,199 
1991 439,575 2,315,553 1,203,407 299,449 76,212 4,334,196 
1992 457,042 2,573,869 1,208,230 319,322 78,996 4,637,459 
1993 477,296 2,969,250 1,244,833 361,306 87,751 5,140,436 
1994 491,016 3,380,911 1,345,534 402,270 94,607 5,714,338 
1995 488,468 3,397,419 1,269,851 443,743 101,593 5,701,074 
1996 522,735 2,890,690 1,425,912 465,774 72,385 5,377,496 
1997 567,527 3,459,780 1,435,129 523,123 101,311 6,086,870 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Outstanding 
Delinquent Total Delinquent 

Current Percent Tax (And Total Collections Outstanding Taxes As 
Fiscal Total Tax Collected Penalties) Tax As Percent Delinquent Percent 
Year Tax Levy Collections As Current Collections Collections Of Levy Taxes OfLe~ 

1988 $ 335,341 $ 288,050 85.9 % $ 49,176 $ 337,226 100.6 % $ 16,305 4.86 % 
1989 368,506 329,469 89.4 31,680 361,149 98.0 22,626 6.14 
1990 403,939 366,071 90.6 37,462 403,533 99.9 26,941 6.67 
1991 422,135 305,261 72.3 134,643 439,904 -104.2 14,984 3.55 
1992 456,743 416,681 91.2 40,415 457,096 100.1 17,069 3.74 
1993 474,443 331,877 70.0 146,464 478,341 100.8 16,024 3.38 
1994 490,378 442,916 90.3 50,660 493,576 100.7 15,220 3.10 
1995 486,110 471,523 97.0 20,944 492,467 101.3 11,395 2.34 
1996 525,276 467,869 89.1 52,355 520,224 99.0 17,318 3.29 
1997 565,117 526,297 93.1 40,723 567,020 100.3 17,826 3.15 
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Fiscal 
Year 

1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Ratio Of 
Total Assessed 

Value To 
Total 

Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Value Actual Value Actual Value 

$ 76,787,372 $ 334,733,706 22.9% 
83,407,445 361,485,478 23.1% 
90,728,362 389,306,290 23.3% 
94,888,430 409,022,336 23.2% 
97,179,362 423,109,883 23.0% 
98,785,800 428,748,081 23.0% 

101,989,700 444,160,674 23.0% 
104,735,900 458,432,133 22.8% 
108,097,300 487,008,416 22.2% 
115,317,000 516,289,419 22.3% 

Property has an assessed value to estimated actual value as follows: commercial real estate 32%, 
residential real estate 19%, agricultural real estate 12%, personal property 33-1/3%. 

The City does not collect tax on personal property and such data is therefore not included. 

Data for real property owned by exempt organizations is not included as it is not available. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

___________________________________________ LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 

City of Arnold $ 0.48 $0.48 $0.47 $0.47 $ 0.47 $0.48 $0.48 $0.48 $0.48 $0.49 

Overlapping governments: 
State of Missouri 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 
Jefferson County 0.48 0.51 0.50 0.50 0.52 0.54 0.53 0.45 0.48 0.49 
Consolidated School No. 6 of Jefferson County 2.93 2.92 2.92 3.06 2.93 2.98 2.98 3.03 3.78 3.78 
Rock Community Fire Protection District 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.66 0.67 0.67 0.70 0.73 0.73 
Rock Township Ambulance District 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.22 0.22 0.23 0.24 0.24 
The Junior College District of Jefferson County 0.26 0.25 0.24 0.22 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.22 0.23 0.23 
The Jefferson County Library District 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 

Total overlapping governments 4.57 4.58 4.56 4.88 4.76 4.85 4.84 4.86 5.69 5.70 

Total city and overlapping governments $ 5.05 $5.06 $5.03 $ 5.35 $ 5.23 $ 5.33 $ 5.32 $5.34 $6.17 $6.19 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

AUGUST 31, 1997 --------------------------------

Taxpayer 

Union Electric Company 
Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Midwest Missouri Gas 
Valcour Development 
Metal Container Corporation 
Wal-Mart 
Suellentrop Family Partnership LP 
Glincher Co. 
GHF Holdings LLC 
Arnold Park Mall Associates 

Utility 
Utility 
Utility 

Type of Business 

Shopping Center 
Aluminum Can Manufacturer 
Retail Store 
Industrial Center 
Shopping Center 
Industrial Center 
Shopping Center 

1997 
Tax Paid 

$ 879,694 
292,760 
262,675 

15,908 
13,666 
10,976 
10,805 
8,546 
7,474 
7,056 
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Fiscal 
Year 

1988 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 

(1) Includes prepayments 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Special Special 
Assessment Assessment 

Billings Collected (1) 

$ 114,281 $ 305,373 
86,285 141,924 

170,806 397,464 
121 ,912 216,170 
114,832 210,240 
119,070 178,106 
117,229 208,318 
161,956 237,361 
198,111 282,521 
188,568 357,203 
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ASSESSED VALUE, AS OF JANUARY 1, 1997: 
REAL PROPERTY 
PERSONAL PROPERTY 

DEBT LIMIT - 10% OF ASSESSED VALUE(*) 

AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT: 

TOTAL BONDED DEBT 

LESS EXEMPT DEBT: 
SEWER REVENUE BONDS 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

AUGUST 31, 1997 

$115,317,000 
52,704,024 

$ 4,633,000 

$168,021,024 

$ 16,802,102 

CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION(MUNICIPAL COMPLEX) 
(2,938,000) 
(1,695,000) 

NET AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN $ 16,802,102 

(*) Under Article VI, Sections 26(b) and 26( c ) of the Missouri Constitution, the City by vote of 2/3 of the 
qualified electors thereof, may incur general obligation bonded indebtedness for City purposes in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable intangible property within the City as 
asserted by the last completed assessment for state or county purposes. Under Section 26( d) of said 
Article VI, the City may incur general obligation indebtedness not exceeding in the aggregate an additional 
10% of the aforesaid assessed valuation for the purposes of acquiring rights-of-way, constructing and 
improving sanitary or storm sewer systems; and under Section 26( e) of said Article VI, additional general 
obligation indebtedness may be incurred for purchasing or constructing waterworks, electric or other light 
plants to be owned exclusively by the City, provided that the general obligation indebtedness of the City 
shall not exceed 20% of the assessed valuation. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT (1) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT 
AUGUST 31, 1997 -------------------------------

Percentage Amount 
Applicable Applicable 

Debt to City of to City of 
Name of Governmental Unit Outstanding Arnold Arnold 

The Junior College District of Jefferson County $ 6,135,000 11.60 % $ 711,660 
Consolidated School District No. 6 of 

Jefferson County 7,250,000 39.40 2,856,500 
City of Arnold 100.00 

$ 3,568,160 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - ENTERPRISE FUND 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Net 
Revenue 
Available Debt Service Requirements 

Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt 
Year Revenues Expenses Service Principal Interest Total Coverage 

1988 $ 849,498 $ 575,615 $ 273,883 $ 70,000 $ 163,762 $ 233,762 1.17 
1989 845,739 573,225 272,514 75,000 157,643 232,643 1.17 
1990 897,380 556,800 340,580 85,000 151,022 236,022 1.44 
1991 906,103 515,658 390,445 100,000 143,402 243,402 1.60 
1992 903,570 613,022 290,548 95,000 146,059 241,059 1.21 
1993 978,024 623,508 354,516 128,333 211,273 339,606 1.04 
1994 1,082,448 653,002 429,446 595,000 291,358 886,358 0.48 
1995 1,113,170 697,938 415,232 186,167 191,326 377,493 1.10 
1996 1,154,205 822,532 331,673 178,250 182,707 360,957 0.92 
1997 1,215,473 941,631 273,842 179,250 176,432 355,682 0.77 
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Fiscal 
Year Po~ulation (1) 

1980 19,141 
1985 19,545 
1990 18,828 
1995 20,053 

Per 
Capita 

Income (1) 

6,960 
NIA 

12,689 
NIA 

Median 
Age (1) 

29.5 
NIA 
31.8 
NIA 

(1) Source - Census Bureau, City of Arnold Community Develop 

(2) Source - Census Bureau 

(3) Source - Consolidated School District No. 6 

(2) Source - Missouri Department of Labor 

CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

FIVE-YEAR INTERVALS 

Education 
Level In 
Years Of 
Formal 

Schooling (2) 

12.2 
NIA 
12.0 
NIA 

School 
Enrollment (3) 

NIA 
8,614 
9,252 
9,507 

Unem­
ployment 
Rate (4) 

7.4% 
7.6% 
9.0% 
5.2% 

Page 48 

-

-



CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS ---------------------------------------

Commercial Residential 

Property Value (1) Construction (2) Construction (2) 

Fiscal Number Number 
Year Commercial Residential Agriculture Total Of Units Value Of Units Value 

1988 $ 104,934,013 $229,600,526 $ 199,167 $334,733,706 11 $ 2,627,429 155 $ 4,544,094 
1989 114,803,478 246,462,000 220,000 361,485,478 9 3,175,075 151 5,400,236 
1990 129,065,194 259,965,263 275,833 389,306,290 10 8,529,276 139 5,782,795 
1991 132,255,407 276,495,263 271,666 409,022,336 15 3,675,889 98 4,363,570 
1992 127,783,874 295,056,842 269,167 423,109,883 8 1,976,000 93 4,767,052 
1993 133,410,625 295,055,789 281,667 428,748,081 7 1,509,600 118 6,492,665 
1994 137,025,937 304,074,737 3,060,000 444,160,674 4 775,000 211 14,398,494 
1995 137,276,563 318,124,737 3,030,833 458,432,133 7 1,320,011 145 10,856,574 
1996 121,302,188 362,797,895 2,908,333 487,008,416 5 949,839 148 20,957,246 
1997 134,044,375 379,334,211 2,910,833 516,289,419 7 2,786,390 129 10,702,387 

(1) Estimated actual value from page 42. 

(2) Source - City of Arnold Community Development Department. 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA 

____________________________ AUGUST 31, 1997 

Date of incorporation 
Form of government 
Number of full-time employees (excluding police) 
Area in square miles 

City of Arnold facilities and services: 
Miles of streets 

Culture and recreation: 
Community centers 
Parks 
Park acreage 
Swimming pools 
Tennis courts 

Police protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of commissioned police officers 
Number of other police personnel 
Number of patrol units 
Number of law violations: 

Physical arrests 
Traffic violations 

Sewerage system: 
Miles of sanitary sewers 
Miles of storm sewers 
Number of treatment plants 
Number of pumping stations 
Daily average treatment in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity in gallons 

Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity: 
Education: 

Number of elementary schools 
Number of elementary school instructors 
Number of secondary schools 
Number of secondary school instructors 
Number of community colleges 

September, 1972 
Mayor/Council/ Administrator 

59 
11.5 

52.9 

1 
4 

229 
1 
1 

1 
44 
12 
16 

1,511 
4,475 

74.8 
7.3 

1 
6 

1.4 million 
3.0 million 

9 
318 

4 
307 

1 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA (CONTINUED) 

AUGUST 31, 1997 ---------------------------------

Fire protection: 
Number of stations 
Number of full-time fire personnel and officers 
Number of volunteer fire personnel 
Number of calls answered 
Number of inspections conducted 

Emergency ambulance services: 
Number of stations 
Number of emergency medical personnel and officers 
Number of ambulance units 
Number of calls answered 

Water system: 
Miles of water mains 
Number of service connections 
Number of fire hydrants 
Daily average consumption in gallons 
Maximum daily capacity in gallons 

3 
31 
23 

2,842 
808 

3 
50 
6 

4,439 

99.7 
6,565 

705 
2.25 million 
2.94 million 
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Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

November 7, 1997 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
( the City) as of and for the year ended August 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 7, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing stan­
dards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's general purpose financial state­
ments are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and mate­
rial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City' s internal control over financial re­
porting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over 
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not 
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material 
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of 

D 16100 Chesterfield Parkway South, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 314-532-9525, Fax 314-532-9055 
D 1000 Washington Square, P.O. Box 225, Washington, Missouri 63090-0225, 314-239-4785, Fax 314-239-5448 
Member: lndependent Accountants International with Member Offices in Principal U.S. and International Cities. 



the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements 
in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being 
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over finan­
cial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have 
reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated November 7, 1997. 

This report is intended for the information of management and all applicable regulatory agencies. 
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

ff~ dh-. l'-~7 Lll" 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT ANTS 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997 -----------------------

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Commerce: 
EDA 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 
Missouri Department of Transportation: 

Highway Planning and Construction 
Highway Planning and Construction 

Missouri Division of Highway Safety 

Federal Emergency Management Agency: 
Missouri Emergency Management Agency 
Missouri Emergency Management Agency 

U.S. Department of Justice: 
Community Oriented Policing Services 

U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development: 

Missouri Housing Development 
Commission 

Missouri Department of Economic 
Development 

Total Awards Expended 

NOTES: 

1. General 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

11.307 

20.205 
20.205 
20.600 

83 .516 
83 .516 

16.710 

14.219 

14.219 

Pass-Through 
Number 

05-19-61250 

BRM-5474(602) 
BRM-5461(601) 

995-DR-MO 
DR-995 

95-CFWX:1072 

94-MHDC-112 

93-DR-010 

Expenditures 

$1,521,095 

268,818 
215,169 

1 742 
485 729 

· 109,324 
56 818 

166,142 

73 174 

37,892 

35 179 
73 071 

$2 319 211 

The schedule of federal awards (schedule) presents the activity of all federal financial assistance programs 
of the City. The City's reporting entity is defined in Note A to the City' s general purpose financial 
statements. Federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as passed through 
other government agencies, is included on the schedule. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The schedule is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note A of 
the City's general purpose financial statements. 
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November 7, 1997 

Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH 0MB cmCULAR A-133 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI (the City) with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the U.S . Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular 
A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each ofits major federal programs for the year 
ended August 31 , 1997. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of audi­
tors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance 
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each ofits major fed­
eral programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133 , Audits of States, Local Gov­
ernments and Non-Pro.fit Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opin­
ion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those require­
ments. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended August 31, 1997. 

D 16100 Chesterfield Parkway South, Suite 125, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-4829, 314-532-9525, Fax 314-532-9055 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over com­
pliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133 . 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters 
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in 
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to 
a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may 
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions . We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its 
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of management and federal awarding agencies and pass­
through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

ff~ dk.... ,1~? 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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CITY OF ARNOLD, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS AND 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AUGUST 31, 1997 -----------------------

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

I. Summary of the auditors' results: 

A. The type of report issued on the general purpose financial statements of the auditee: .Unqualified 
opm1on. 

B. Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the general purpose fi­
nancial statements, however, none were material weaknesses. 

C. The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the general purpose financial 
statements of the auditee. 

D. No reportable conditions in internal control over major programs were disclosed by the audit. 

E . The type of report the auditors issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified opinion. 

F. The audit disclosed no audit findings which the auditors are required to report under § .510(a). 

G. Identification of major programs: EDA 

H. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as described in 
§. 520(b): $1,159,606. 

I. The auditee does qualify as a low-risk auditee under § .530. 

II. Findings relating to the general purpose financial statements which are required to be reported in 
accordance with GAGAS: None 

III. Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which shall include audit findings as defined in 
§. 510(a): None 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

None 
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FORM SF-SAC 
(8-97) 

0MB No. 0348-0057 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE - BUREAU OF THE CENSUS 

Data Collection Form for Reporting on 
ACTING AS COLLECTING AGENT FOR 

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET 

AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS 

► Complete this form, as required by 0MB Circular A-133, "Audits 
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

RETURN TO Single Audit Clearinghouse 
1201 E. 10th Street 
Jeffersonville, IN 47132 

· PARTI . GENERAL INFORMATION (To be completed by auditee, except for Item 7) 

1. Fiscal year ending date for this submission 2. Type of Circular A-133 audit 
Month Day Year 
os I 31 / 97 

3. Audit period covered 

, IZl Annual 3 0 Other -
20 Biennial 

5. Employer Identification Number (EIN) 

Months 

1 00 Single audit 2 0 Program-specific audit 

FEDERAL , 
GOVERNMENT 
USE ONLY.c 

4a Date received by Federal 
clearinghouse , ... · · 

a. Auditee EIN 14hlol 919131617141 b. Are multiple EINs covered in this report? ,□ Yes _ 2!Xl No 

6. AUDITEE INFORMATION 

a. Auditee name 

City of Arnold 
b. Auditee address (Number and street) 

2101 Jeffco Blvd. 
City 

Arnold 
State 

MO 
c. Auditee contact 

Name 

John A. Brazeal 
Title 

Finance Director 
d. Auditee contact telephone 

(314) 296 -6533 
e. Auditee contact FAX (Optional) 

(314) 296 -2399 
f. Auditee contact E-mail (Optional) 

ZIP Code 

63010 

g. AUDITEE CERTIFICATION STATEMENT-This is 
to <:ert1fy that, _to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, the aud1t~E: has: (1) Engaged an auditor to 
perforn:, an audit in accordance with the provisions of 
0MB Circular A-133 for the period described in Part I 
lten:s 1 and 3; (2) the auditor has completed such ' 
audit and presente_d a signed audit report which 
st?tes that th~ ?ud1t was conducted in accordance 
~1th the _pro~1s1ons of the Circular; and, (3) the 
inform_at1on incl_uded in Parts I, II, and Ill of this data 
collection form ts accurate and complete. I declare 
that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Date 
Month Day ·vear 

I 

John A. Brazeal/Finance Director 

7. AUDITOR INFORMATION (To be completed by auditor) 

a. Auditor name 

Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
b. Auditor address (Number and street) 

16100 Chesterfield Pkwy S #125 
City 

Chesterfield 
State 

MO 
c. Auditor contact 

Name 

Michael D. Williams 
Title 

Director 
d. Auditor contact telephone 

( 314} 5 3 2 - 9 5 2 5 
e. Auditor contact FAX (Optional) 

(314} 532-9055 

ZIP Code 

63017 

f. Auditor contact E-mail (Optional) 

g. ~UDIT~R ~TATEMENT-The data elements and 
inform_at1on included in this form are limited to those 
prescribe~ by 0MB Circular A-133. The information 
included in Parts II and Ill of the form, except for Part 
Ill, Items 5 and 6, was transferred from the auditor's 
report(s) fo: the period described in Part I; Items 1 
and_ 3, and 1s not a substitute for such reports. The 
a_ud1tor has not performed any auditing procedures 
since ~he date of the au~itor's report(s). A copy of the 
rep_ort1!1g package required by 0MB Circular A-133, 
wh1~h inc!u~es th~ complete auditor's report(s), is 
available in 1~s ent_1rety from the auditee at the 
add res~ provided rn Part I of this form. As required by 
0MB C1_rcular A-133, the information in Parts II and 
Ill of this '.orm wa~ entered in this form by the auditor 
based on information included in the reporting 
pac~~ge. The ~~ditor has not performed any 
add1t1on~I aud1t1r:ig procedures in connection with the 
completion of this form. 

Signature of auditor Date 
Month Day Year 

11 / 0 7 /9 7 



EIN: I 4 I 3 I O I 9 I 9 I 31 6 I 7 I 4 I 
GENERAL INFORMATION - Continued 

8. Indicate w~ether the auditee has either a Federal cognizant or oversight agency for audit. 
1 D Cognizant agency 2 lxl Oversight agency 

(Mark (X) one box) 

9. Name of Federal cognizant or oversight agency for audit (Mark (X) one box) 

01 D African Development 83 D Federal Emergency 16 D Justice 
Foundation Management Agency 17 □ Labor 

02 D Agency for 34 D Federal Mediation and □ N 
International Conciliation Service 43 ational Aeronautics 
D I and Space 

eve opment 39 D General Services Administration 
10 D Agriculture Administration 89 □ National Archives and 
11 ~ Commerce 93 D Health and Human Records Administraton 
94 D Corporation for Services 05 □ National Endowment 

National and 14 D Housing and Urban for the Arts 
Community Service Development 06 □ National Endowment 

12 D Defense 03 D Institute for Museum for the Humanities . 
84 D Education Services 47 D National Science 
81 D Energy 04 D Inter-American Foundation 
66 D Environmental Foundation 01 □ Office of National Drug 

Protection Agency 1s D Interior Control Policy 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (To be completed by auditor) 

1. Type of audit report (Mark (X) one box) 

08 D Peace Corps 
59 D Small Business 

Administration 
96 D Social Security 

Administration 
19 D State 
20 D Transportation 
21 D Treasury 
82 D United States 

Information Agency 
64 D Veterans Affairs 

D Other - Specify: 

1 [XI Unqualified opinion 2 D Qualified opinion 3 D Adverse opinion 4 D Disclaimer of opinion 

2. Is a "going concern" explanatory 
paragraph included in the audit report? 1 D Yes 2ral No 

3. Is a reportable condition disclosed? 1 Q9 Yes 2 □ No - SKIP to Item 5 

4. Is any reportable condition reported 
as a material weakness? 1 D Yes 2 [xi No 

5. Is a material noncompliance disclosed? 1 D Yes 2 lxl No 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS (To be completed by auditor} 

1. Type of audit report on major program compliance 
1 IX] Unqualified opinion 2 D Qualified opinion 3 D Adverse opinion 40 Disclaimer of opinion 

2. What is the dollar threshold to distinguish Type A and Type B programs §_ .520(b)? 

$1,159,606 

3. Did the auditee qualify as a low-risk auditee (§_ .530)? 

1 [Xl Yes 2 D No 
4. Are there any audit findings required to be reported under §_ .510(a)? 

1 D Yes 2[xl No 
5. Which Federal Agencies are required to receive the reporting package? (Mark (X) all that apply) 

01 D African Development 
Foundation 

02 D Agency for 
International 
Development 

10 D Agriculture 
11 IZl Commerce 
94 D Corporation for 

National and 
Community Service 

12 D Defense 
B4 0 Education 
81 0 Energy 
66 0 Environmental 

Protection Agency 

Page 2 

53 IZ] Federal Emergency 
Management Agency 

34 D Federal Mediation and 
Conciliation Service 

39 0 General Services 
Administration 

93 D Health and Human 
Services 

14 Q9 Housing and Urban 
Development 

03 D Institute for Museum 
Services 

04 0 Inter-American 
Foundation 

15 D Interior 

16 IZl Justice 
110 Labor 
43 0 National Aeronautics 

and Space 
Administration 

89 0 National Archives and 
Records Administraton 

05 0 National Endowment 
for the Arts 

06 D National Endowment 
for the Humanities 

47 D National Science 
Foundation 

01 0 Office of National Drug 
Control Policy 

08 0 Peace Corps 
59 0 Small Business 

Administration 
96 0 Social Security 

Administration 
,s O State 
20 IX] Transportation 
21 0 Treasury 
82 0 United States 

Information Agency 
64 0 Veterans Affairs 
ooO None 

0 Other - Specify: 

FORM SF-SAC (8-97 ) 

.... 



!. 1a11n 
FEDERAL PROGRAMS - Continued .., 

t 6. 
FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED DURING FISCAL YEAR 7 . AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ;;; 

~ CFDA 
Type of A m o unt of Internal Audit finding number 1 Name of Federal ; A mount Major 

compliance questioned control reference program ' expended program 
requirement2 costs findings3 number(s) ,_ (a) 

, · (c) (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (bJ 

EIN - I4 I 3 I O I 9 I 9 13 16 17 I 4 I 

r--.11. 307 1 Ix! Yes A,B , G,J.l(, ,□A Jrnc EDA $ 1,521,095 2D N0 L , N $ N/A 20 B N/A 

-2 0.205 , □ Yes ,□A Jlx!C 
Highway Planning & Constructior $ 483,987 2 lxl No A, G,J,L,N $ N/A 20B N/A 

,_ 83.516 1 □ Yes ,□A J@C 
Disaster Assistanc e $ 1 6 6_1_142 2 IXI No A,B,E , G, L , N $ N/A 20 B N/A 

- .~ o Community Orient ed ,□ Yes ,DA J@C 
Po licing Serv. $ 73,174 2 IXI No None $ N/A 20 B N/A 

14.219 
Community Development Block , □ Yes ,DA JK)C c 

20 B N/A 
(/) - Grant/Small Cities Proqram $ 73,071 2 IXI No A,G,J , L , M,N $ N/A c, 
" 0 

,□A JKJC ,□ Yes _; 20 ; ~ • 600 Highway Safety $ 1,742 2 IXJ No None $ N/A 20 B N/A c,, 

" "' 
,□A JOC 1 □ Yes 6 

" ~ 0, 

20No 2D 8 $ $ 
a; 
'= 

,□AJ□ C 
;: 

1 □ Yes -
$ 20No $ 2D8 

- ,□ Yes ,DA JDC 
$ 20No $ 208 

,□ Yes ,□A JDC 
$ 20No $ 208 

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED -+- IF ADDITIONAL LINES ARE NEEDED, PLEASE PHOTOCOPY THIS PAGE, ~ 

$ ATTACH ADDITIONAL PAGES TO THE FORM, AND SEE INSTRUCTIONS 2,319,211 1 
Or other ide rty· 

2Ty n 
I 

ing number when the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number is not available. 
Pe of compr . ) 

iance requirement (Enter the letter(s) of all that apply to audit findings and questioned costs reported for each Federal program. 
:· Activities allowed or unallowed G. Matching, level of effort, earmarking L. Reporting 
c· ~llowable costs/cost principles H. Period of availability of funds M. Subr?cipient monitori~~ 
0 · 0 as~ management I. Procurement N. Special tests and prov1sIons 
E · E ~v!s .-. Bacon Act J. Program income 0 . None 
F · E 1,g~bil,ty K. Real property acquisition and 

3 • quipment and real property management relocation assistance 

Type of internal ~ontrol findings (Mark (X) all that apply) 
, A. Material weaknesses 8. Rennrt.::ih lo ,-nnrliti~" ~ ,... ,., ___ --- - a I 
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